Travel Food Services Private Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds

Share capital

Reserves and surplus

Minority Interest

Non-current liabilities
Long-tenm borrowings
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term provisions

Capital Reserve on consolidation

Current Liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 42)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other current liabilities

- Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises (refer note 42)
- Others

Short-term provisions

TOTAL

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Capital work-in-progress

Goodwill on consolidation
Non-current investiments
Deferred tax assets (Net)
Long term loans and advances
Other non-current assets

Current assets

Current investiments
Inventories

Trade receivables

Cash and bank balances

Short term loans and advances
Other current assets

TOTAL

Significant accounting policies
Accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For'} SIR & Associates LLP
Chartergd .-lccomrm;uf
Fir's egjsktion Moz 116231 W/W-100024
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Shabhir Readymadewala
Partner

Membership No: 100060
Mumbai

Date : 17 July 2023
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As At
31 March 2023

As At
31 March 2022

387.29 387.29
71,069.96 46,415.56
71,457.25 46,802.86

1,181.22 748.21
2,219.19 3,445.75
1,035.18 1,293.83

587.98 587.85
3,842.35 5,327.43

819.16 819.16

901.78 386.53

819.38 468.61

2,690.75 2,452.05
18.45 29.64
19,693.62 12,713.90
3,709.66 2,494.63
27,833.64 18,545.36
1,05,133.62 72,243.02
9,662.22 9,632.70
80.50 84.00

668.35 159.44
10,411.07 9,876.14

154.58 154.58
12,764.31 9,918.61

3,178.44 1,313.17
10,997.49 4,121.42
6,749.69 7,505.56
33,689.93 22,858.75
30,083.45 21,015.69
1,063.61 711.66
11,252.66 4,697.93
13,582.94 10,398.52
2,205.65 1,221.79
2,689.73 1,307.94
60,878.04 39,353.54
1,05,133.62 72,243.02

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Travel Food Services Private Limited
CIN: U55209MH2007PTC176045
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Karan Kapur Varun Kapur
Director Director

DIN: 01711148 DIN: 00113399
Mumbai Mumbai

Date : 17 July 2023




Travel Food Services Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Change in inventories of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense

- Current tax

- Deferred tax (credit)

- (Excess) provision of tax for eatlier years
Profit for the year

Less: Minority interest

Add : Share in profit of associate

Net profit for the year

Earnings per equity share of face value of INR 10 each
Basic and Diluted (in INR )

Significant accounting policies
Accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached,

Associates LLP
Ceountants

1:3‘_9.1 No: 14623 1W/W-100024

habbir Readymadewala
Partner

Membership No: 100060
Mumbai

Date : 17 July 2023

Note For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

22 1,06,371.20 38,749.86
23 2,958.79 1,984.84

1,09.329.99 40,734.70

24 19,359.36 7,574.38

25 1,690.14 661.39
26 35.27 (109.16)

27 15,877.91 8,888.15

28 968.48 456.05

12 2,258.34 1,728.47

29 41,411.62 19,344.50

§1,601.12 38,543.78

27,728.87 2,190.92

37 7,195.37 1,672.49
37 (1,865.33) (188.20)

37 (127.58) -

22,526.41 706.63

853.01 19.84

2,845.70 553.83

24,519.10 1,240.62

38 633.09 32.03
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Travel Food Services Private Limited

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activitics

Net profit before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Finance costs

Interest income on loan given to related parties

Interest income on bank deposits

Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment (Net)

Net gain on sale of current investments

Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for doubtful advances (Net)

Provision for doubtful deposits

Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back
Provision against security deposits written back

Advances written off

Provision for doubtful interest receivable

Liabilities no longer required written back

Net loss on Scap of assests

Inventory written off

Net gain on account of foreign exchange fluctuations (Nct)
Bad debt written off

Impainnent of goodwill

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Effects of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Adjustments for :

Increase in {rade payables

(Decrease) in other long tern liabilities

Increase in long-term provisions

[ncrease in short-term provisions

Increase in other current liabilities

(Increase) in inventories

(Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease / {Increase) in long-term loans and advances
(Increase) in short-term loans and advances
Decrease / (Increase) in other Non current assets
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Sale proceed from sale of property, plant and equipment
Loan given to related parties

Interest income on loan given and bank deposits
(Investment) / maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months)
Investment in inutual funds

Redemption of mutual funds

Inveslinent in associate

Dividend paid to Minority shareholder of subsidiary
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing aclivities

Proceeds from borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash (used in) / from financing activities ( C)

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer note below)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer note below)

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Scatement
(AS-3) prescribed by the Central Government, in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2014.

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand

Cash in Transit

Balances with banks

- on current accounts

Total

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equiivalents

Amount of Cash on hand per Note above

Amount of Deposits shown under "Cash and Bank Batances"

Total Shown under the heading "Cash and Bank Balances" (note 19)

-
sHahbir I&anmtlcwaln
Parter

Membership No: 100060
Mumbat
Date : 17 July 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

27,728.87 2,190.92
2,258.34 1,728.47
968.48 456.05
(428.49) (178.05)
(569.19) (412.89)
(40.58) (27.14)
(680.39) (516.34)
5438 316
215.49 24721
- 75.67
(8.91) (432.65)
(81.23) S
227 2.04
183,55 410,12
(169.57) (30.92)
3.70 1.37
- 2.84
(99.06) 135
214,96 115.77
- 69.60
9,08 E
135.31 6221
19.697.02 376830
589.46 522,94
(258.65) (147.17)
0.13 106.64
21475 66.37
7,550.42 5,009.18
(351.95) (49.05)
(6,815.16) (1,795.30)
75.80 (102.75)
(276.20) (159.74)
684.66 (678.69)
(914.52) 130.77
30,195.76 6,671.50
(5,900.28) (2,169.35)
24,705.48 4,502.14
(4,404.02) (2,438,68)
87.91 29.12
(6,903.36) (349.64)
590.52 434,05
(1,179.07) (3,723.17)
(57,928.41) (9,690.30)
49,541.03 11,346.07
- (1,098.57)
(420.00) -
(20,615.40) (5,492.11)
(711.33) 1,595.01
(971.25) (458.82)
(1,682.58) 1,136.19
1,997.50 147.21
235019 2,202.98
4,347,69 2,350.10
260.42 152,51
4456 10.01
404271 218767
4,347.69 2,350.19
4,347.69 2,350.19
9.235.25 804834
13,582.94 10,397.52

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Travel Food Services Private Limited
CIN: U5520GMH200TPFTTC1 76045
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Director

DIN: 01711148
Mumbai
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Travel Food Services Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2(23
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1

2.1

2.2

2.3

Company overview

Travel Food Services Private Limited (“TFSPL” or the “Holding Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively, “the Company” or the “Group”), Joint
Venture and associate companies is a leading company engaged in managing and developing food and beverages outlets and lounge services at various

aimports, highways, railway stations and day hotels. The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorised for issue on 17 July 2023.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods preserted in these consolidated financial statements.
Basis of preparation of lidated financial t
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accoanting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act’), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, read wvith Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016
applicable with effect from 1 April 2016 and other pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees unless otherwise swted.

Liquidation basis of accounting in respect of Gourmet Foods LLC

The Old Muscat International Airport has been closed with effect from 21 March 2018. Thzrefore, the contract of Gourmet Foods LLC (subsidiary) with Oman
Airport Management Co. SAOC (OAMC) expired and its operations have been wound ur from that date. Accordingly, the members have agreed to wind up
the subsidiary's operations and are in the process of collecting the debts and settling the liabilities there against. As a result, the financial statements of the

subsidiary have not been prepared on going concern basis. The carrying values of the sudsidiary's assets and liabilties as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022 are presented at their respective realisable values.

Principles of Consolidati

{4

The Consolidated Financial Statements consist of Travel Food Services Private Limited (“ he Company”) and all of its subsidiares (collectively referred to as
"the Group™), joint venture and associates company. These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

(a) The financial statements of the holding Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book
values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenscs, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions and unrealised
profits or losses as per Accounting Standard 21 — "Consolidated Financial Statements".

The results of the associates companies have been accounted using the equity method of accounting as specified in Accounting Standard 23 -
"Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements" notifiad by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014.

The results of the joint venture company have been accounted using the proportionase method of accounting as specified in Accounting Standard 27 -
"Accounting for Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Venture in Consolidated Financial Statements" notified by Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2014,

(b) In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral operations, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets and
liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised in the "Foreign
Currency Translation Reserve".

(c) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, and the Group's share of net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the
subsidiaries is recognised in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as he case may be.

d

-

Minority Interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet separately from liabilities and
equity of the Company's shareholders. Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

a) The amount of equity attributable to minority at the date on which investment in a sut sidiary is made; and
b) The minority share of movements in equity since the date the parent subsidiary relaticnship came into existence.

(e) Minority's share of net profit for the year of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and acjusted against the Profit After Tax of the Group.

(f) The financial statements of the subsidiaries, joint venture and associates used in the coasolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the
Company i.e. 31 March, 2023

(g) The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for similar transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

(h) Unaudited financial statement of Gourmet Food LLC, subsidiary incorporated in Omar,, have been considered for consolidation. The share of Gourmet
Foods LLC is held by the Company and indirectly through a wholly owned subsidiary Fravel Food Services Global Private Limited to the extent of 49%
and balance 51% investment in Gourmet Food LLC is by Mustafa Sultan Enterprise. A: per the local laws of Oman, an outside entity cannot hold more
than 49% in any entity incorporated in Oman, However, considering that Company holds 49% investment in the voting rights and the day-to-day business
operations and management is exclusively conducted by the Company only, this entity has been considered as subsidiary in the ct‘rmif!|_iiii_il€¢d~ financial
statements. = ==

8. LSl N
Unaudited financial statement of the GMR Hospitality Limited, joint venture in Inde have been considered for cnusulin;;afigﬁ: 1 'I:’;:'ch‘ure- u]\%j;;\\
. 2 :

Hospitality Limited is held bythe holding Company of 30% investment. Considering ttal Company holds equal board comysit and lh'c..duy'-lu- \
r\@n(jre iy the unﬁéolidat%&l 3

business operations and mafiagement is exclusively conducted by the Company only, th= entity has been considered as join
financial slatements,
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Travel Food Services Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2(23
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2.3 Principles of Consolidation (Continued)

O]

Investment in associates companies has been accounted for by using equity methed whereby investment is initally recorded at cost and the carrying
amount is adjusted there after for post acquisition change in Company's share of net assets of the associates, The carrying amount of investment in
associates companies is reduced to recognize any decline which is other than tempcrary in nature and such determiniation of decline in value, if any, is
made for investment individually. This is in accordance with Accounting Standard 2 — "Consolidated Financial Statements" and Accounting Standard 23
- "Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements"

TJavestment in joint venture companies has been accounted by using proportionate method whereby investment is initally recorded at cost and the carrying
amount is adjusted thereafter for post acquisition change in Company's share of net assets of the joint venture. The carrying amount of investment in joint
venture companies is reduced to recognize any decline which is other than temporary in nature and such determiniation of decline in value, if any, is
made for investment individually. This is in accordance with Accounting Standard 27 — "Consolidated Financial Statements" and Accounting Standard 27
- "Accounting for Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Venture in Consolidated Rinancial Statements.

The list of subsidiary companies, Joint Venture and associates companies which are mcluded in the consolidation and the Group’s holdings therein are as
under;

Sr.
No

Ownership in %
either directly or
through
subsidiaries as at
31 March 2023

Ownership in %
either directly or
through subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2022

Country of

Name of the Company incorporation

Subsidiaries
i TFS (R&R) Works Private Limited (f.k.a Travel Food Services (Delhi) Private Limited) 100.00% 100.00% India
ii Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited 99.99% 99.99% India
iii Travel Food Services Kolkata Private Limited 99.99% 99.99% India
iv Travel Food Services Global Private Limited 100.00% 100.00% Mauritius
v Gourmet Food LLC * 49.00% 49.00% Oman
vi Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 60.00% 60.00% India
vii BLR Lounge Services Private Limited 100.00% 100.00% India
viii Semolina Kitchens Private Limited (w.e.f. 30th June 2022) 100.00% 0.00% India
Joint venture
i GMR Hospitality Limited (w.e.f. 25th July 2022) 30.00% 0.00% India
Associates
i Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 44.40% 44.40% India
ii Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn. Bhd (w.e.f 05th August 2021) 49.90% 49.90% Malaysia

* Travel Food Services Global Private Limited hold 49% investment in Gourmet Food LLC. As per the local laws of Oman, an outside entity cannot hold more than 49% in

any entity incorporated in Oman. However, considering that Company holds 49% investment in‘the voting rights and the day-to-day business operations and management
is exclusively conducted by the Company only, this entity has been considered as subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements.

2.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP’) requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and tae disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. #lanagement believes that the estimates made in the preparation of

2.5

the

consolidated financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is

recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Current / non-current classification
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i) 1t is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Compan=’s normal operating cycle;

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(iii) It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to setle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial asscts.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(i) 1t is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

(ii1) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the balance sheet date; or

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iv) The company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability tor at least twol nthe aflet the' .
reporting date. f j \

£ urrent liabilities include current portion of non-currgfit financial liabilities. /




Travel Food Services Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(Continued)

2.6  Operating cycle

All assets and liabilities have beci classified as current or non-current as per the Compay’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are
in accordance with the Schedule 111 to the Act. Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle a: 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of
assets and liabilities.

2.7 Property, plant and eqguipment
Tangihle assets

Useful life
Plant and Machinery 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures 5 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Computers 3 years
Software 3 years
Vehicles 8 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the useful life of assets or the lease term, wh chever is lower.

A Property, plant and cquipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal.

Losses arising from retirciment or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost are recognised in the consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Capilal work-in-progress includes the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use as at the balance sheet date,

Advance paid for acquisition / censtruction of property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet date are
disclosed under loans and advances gg capital advances,

Assets costing individually Rs 5,000 or less, are depreciated fully in the year of purchase,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent sofiwarc licenses purchased by the Company which are amortizd over an expected benefit period of 3 years using the straight line
method. Non refundable fees paid to franchisor are amortized during the contract period w-th the franchisor.

2.8 Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an a:set ora group of assets (cash generating unit) may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the fecoverable amount af the asset or a group of assets. The recoverable amount of the asset (or where
apphicable, that of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the Hgher of its net selling price and its value in use, In assessing value
i use, the estimated future cash Nows are discounted (o their present value hased on an #ppropriate discount factor, If such recoverable amount of the asset
or the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the assel belongs is lese than its cartying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverahle amount. |n assessing the value in use, estimated future cash flows are discourted to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor.
The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profitand loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoveralle amount subject to a
maximum of depreciable historical cost.

2.9 Investments
Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than 4 year from the date of acquisition are classified as current investments. All
other investments are classified as long-term investments. However, that part of long tern_investments which is expected to be realized within 12 months
after the reporting date is also presented under ‘current assets” as “current portion of lonz term investinents” in consonance with the current—non-current
classification scheme of Schedule 111,

Long-term investments (including current portion thereof) are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary diminution in value, determined separately for
each individual investment.

Profit or loss on sale of investments is recognised in the statement of profit and loss upon di-posal of the investment.

210 Inventories
Inventories consists of raw materials and stock-in-trade which comprises of grocevies and cansumables which are of perishable nature and are valued at lower
of costs and net realizable valuc, Costs of inventories is deténmined on First In First Out (FIZ0) method in case of stock in trade and raw materials. Provision
is made for inventory expired or not likely to be consumed where considered necessary,

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs i curred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an ncm~by—itc_z)_;f%_s}é?:_

Wesiern
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Travel Food Services Private Limitéd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(Continued)

2.11

213

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as part of
such assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires'a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in
which active development is interrupted. Capitalization of borrowing costs is ceased waen substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Revenue recognition

Food and beverage sales

Revenue from sales is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership is transferred to the customers, which coincides with the point of delivery
of goods to the customers at the sales outlets.

Inconie from Lounges

Revenue from lounge services is recognised as and when the services are rendered to the customers and there are no unfulfilled obligations. The performance
obligation is fulfilled at the time of customer availing the services of lounge

Income firom sub concessioners
Income from sub concessioners is recognised on accrual basis and in accordance with the contractual airangement entered into with the outlet operator.

Day hotel sales

Revenue from day hotel sales is generated when the person(s) complete their stay at the hote!l and utilise the facilities therein, at the time of
the flight layover.

Strategic Tie-up fees
Strategic tie-up fees is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the agreement.

Business support services and commission income
Income from support services and commission is recognised on accrual basis and in accordance with the contractual arrangement entered into with the
respective parties.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount invested and the rate applicable.

Other income
Other income is recognised in the books when eared

Leases

Assets taken on operating lease:

Lease, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset during the lease term, are classified as
operating leases.

Lease payments under operating lease are recognised as an expense in the statement of p=ofit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, considering
the renewal terms, if appropriate.

i < . N

Assets given on operating lease: / A N4
Lease rentals are recognized in statement of profit and loss on straight line basis over the ease term, Hen /o !




Travel Food Services Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Cuirency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(Continued)

2.14

215

2.16

2.17

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. The undiscounted amount
of shott-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized as an expense during the period.

Compensated absences

The employees can cary-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods or receive cash
compensation on termination of employment but subject to utilization of 3 months from the end of the financial year. Since the compensated absences fall
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render -he related service and are also expected to be utilized wholly within
twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a short-tema employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such
compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services thet increase this entitlement. The Company’s liability is actuarially
determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial 13sses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year in which they arise.

Long term employment benefits
Defined contribution plans:
The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident func scheme and employees” state insurance corporation. The Group

contribution paid / payable under the scheme is recognised as expense in the statement >f profit and loss during the year in which the employee renders the
related service. The interest rate payable on employee provident fund scheme is being nctified by the Government.

Defined benefit plans

The Group gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The group net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build
up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimatzd future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the
present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yieHs on Government securities as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognized inumediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange rate differences arising
on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised as income or expanse in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rate on that date. The
exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and related assets and liabilities are accordingly restated in the balance sheet.

Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Transaction in foreign currency are translated in INR as per Accounting Standard 11. The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries namely Gourmet Food
LLC are translated into the reporting currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the reposting date. Their statement of profit and loss are translated at average
exchange rates. The exchange differences arising on translation are accumulated in the fo-eign currency translation reserve

Taxation

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

[ncome tax expense comprises cutrent tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the income tax law) and deferred tax charge or
credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period).

The deferred tax charge or credit and the comesponding deferred tax liabilities or as:ets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised ony to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be
realised in future; however, where thete is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward w0ss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if
there is a virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date for appropriateness of their carrying
value at each balance sheet date.

Earnings per share ('"EPS')

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of
cquity shares outstanding during the reporting year. The number of shares used in cowrputing diluted eamings per share comprises the weighted average
number of shares considered for deriving basic eamnings per share, and also the weiglred average number of shares, that could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential shares, unless the results would be anli-di]utivel/v' —
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Travel Food Services Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(Continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

Provision and contingencies

The Group creates a provision when there is present obligation as a resuit of a past =vent that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingen: liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there & a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources
would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Loss contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the
amount can be reasonably ascertained.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an
ceconomic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Decommissioning liability: Provision for decommissioning costs of outlets Jocated at Incira Gandhi International Airport, Delhi. Decommissioning costs are
provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset.

Cash flow statement

Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, wheteby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and {inancing activities of the Group are segregated based on the
available information. Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with bank in current accounts, demand deposits with banks having maturity
less than three months, other short-term highly liquid investinents with original maturities of three months or Iess.

Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash flow Statements comprises of cash at bank and on hand and short term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideratian transferred on acquisition of Subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually, or mo-e frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Investment in Associate
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Company’s investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially
recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise charges in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the
acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually. The
financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting
policies in line with those of the Group.

Investment in Joint Venture
Joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control to the net assets of the joint ventures. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these Consoldated Financial Statements using the proportionate method of
accounting, The Group repotts its interests in joint ventures using the proportionate method f accounting.

The consolidated statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of opezations of the joint ventur:@/

AT




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the c lidated fi ial st

(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Share capital
Authorised share capital

ts as at 31 March 2023

As At As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

6,000,000 (Previous year: 6,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 600.00 600.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
3,872,926 (Previous year: 3,872,926) equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 387.29 387.29
387.29 387.29_
a Reconciliation of shares mutstanding at the beginning and al the end of the reporting year
As At 31 March 2023 As At 31 March 2022
Equity Shares Number of Number of Equity Amount
Equity shares Amount shares
At the commencement of the year 38,72,926 387.29 38,72,926 387.29
Shares issued during the year - - - =
At the end of the year 33,72,926 387.29 38,72,926 387.29

b Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally witl regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The
equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of ar equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion
to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be cxcrcised in reswect of sharcs on which any call or other sums presently payable have
not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining afier distribution of all preferential

amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

[12 Shares held by Holding Company

As At 31 March 2023

As At 31 March 2022

Name of shareholder

Numper of Number of Equity
Equity shares Amount shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held by
SNVK Hospitality and Management Private Limited 1*,75,193 197.52 19,75,193 197.52

d Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of shareholder

As At 31 March 2023

As At 31 March 2022

No of =quity  Percentage

No of equity shares Percentage

share= held held
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held by
SNVK Hospitality and Management Private Limited 15,75,193 51.00% 19,75,193 51.00%
SSP Asia Pacific Holdings Limited 1897733 49.00% 18.97.733 49.00%

e Particulars of shareholding of promoters

Shares held by promoter at the end of year

As at 31 March 2023

4 (a) Reserves and surplus

4 (b) Minority Interest

Promoter Name No. of shares Percentage % Change during
the year
SNVK Hospitality and Management Private Limited 19,75,193 51.00% 0.00%
SSP Asia Pacific Holdings Limited 18.97,733 49.00% 0.00%
Total 38,72.926 100.00% 0.00%
Shares held by promoter at the end of year As at 31 March 2022
Promoter Name No. of shares Percentage % Change during
the vear
SNVK Hospitality and Management Private Limited 19,75,193 51.00% 0.00%
SSP Asia Pacific Holdings Limited 18.97.733 49.00% 0.00%
Total 38.72.926 100.00% 0.00%
Securities premium account
At the commencement of the year 11,018.54 11,018.54
Add : Securities premium on shares issued - =
At the end of the year 11,018.54 11,018.54
Surplus in Profit and loss balance
At the commenceinent of the year 34,880.10 33,632.58
Add : Transfer from Foreign currency translation reserve - 6.90
Add: Net profit for the year 24,519.10 1,240.62
At the end of the year 59,399.20 34,880.10
Foreign currency translation reserve
At the commencement of the year 430.16 374.85
Add : Changes during the Year 135.31 62.21
Less : Transfer to surplus in the statement of profit and loss - (6.90)
At the end of the year 565.47 430.16
General reserve
At the commenceinent of the year 86.75 86.75
At the end of the year 86.75 (8635
71,069.96 46,415.56
/
At the commencerment of the year T48.21 72837
Add : Addition during the Year B53.01 | 19,84
Less: Interim dividend paid (420.00) et -

At the end of the year

1,181.22 \ 74821,




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As At As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

5 Long- term borrowings

Secured loan

Term Loan from Banks 2,219.19 3,831.91

Less : Current maturities of long terim borrowings (refer note no.8) - (386.16)

2.219.19 3,445.75

a) Details of security on loans:

Term loans as at 31 March 2023

Particulars As At Rate of As At Rate of

31 March 23 | interest 31 March 22 interest
Indian Rupee terin loan * 221919 | 8%-9% $,099.57 8% - 9%

* One of the subsidiary company namely BLR Lounge Services Private Limited has taken tern loan whicl includes following :
a. First pari-passu charge on the current and movable assets of the subsidiary namely BLR Lounge Services Private Limited
b. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company Travel Food Services Private Limited and Fellow Subsidiary Company Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited

(i) The Subsidiary Company namely BLR Lounge Services Private Limited has satisfied all covenants preented in the terns of the bank loan statement.
(i) The Subsidiary Company nammely BLR Lounge Services Private Limited has not defaunlted on any loanzpayable.

Term loans as at 31 March 2023
Particulars As at Rate of Asat Rate of
31 March 23 | interest 31 March 22 linterest

- - 732.34 8.20%

Indian Rupee tenn loan #

# One of subsidiary company namely Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited has taken t2rm loan :repayable in 3 quarterly (Previous year : 6 Quarterly) equal
instalments of Rs. 96.54 lakhs from March 2023 till September 2023 (Previous Year INR 96.54 Lakhs from June 2022 to til June 2023 ) and balance loan amount as part of
December 2023 installment,

Secured against

a) Exclusive charge on the current assets of the subsidiary Company Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminzl 3) Private Limited,

b) Escrow of receivables,

¢) Pledge of 30% sponsor shareholding in Delhi Intemational Airport Limited.

b) Details of fund based borrow ings sanctioned during the reporting period but not disbursed during the reposting period :
Particulars Asat As at
31 Ma-ch23 | 31 March 22
Working capital term loan 540 -
Rate of Interest 7.50% -
Tenor 7. months -

One of subsidiary company namely Travel Food Services (Delhi Terninal 3) Private Limited has sancticned overdraft limit of INR 100 lakhs by HDFC Bank, secured by a
charge on entire current assets of the Subsidiary Company namely Travel Food Services {(Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited, escrow of receivables and pledge of 30% sponsor
sharcholding of Delhi International Airport Limited and Holding Company namely Travel Food Services Private Limited in the subsidiary company namely Travel Food
Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited .

6 Other long-term liabilities

Income received in advance - 185.90
Security deposits 1,035.18 1,107.93
1,035.18 1,293.83
7 Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits:

- Gratuity (Refer note 40 (b)) 547.57 545,30
Decominissioning liability * 40.41 42.55
587.98 587.85

Movement in decommissioning liability
Opening Balance 42.69 33.37
Provision created during the year 2.14 9.32
Closing Balance 40.55 42.69

*Provision for decommissioning costs represents the present value of the management's best estimate of the costs of dismantiing and removing the item and restoring the outlets
located at Indira Gandhi International Airport, New Delhi.

8 Short-term borrowings
Secured
Bank overdraft - 0.37
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 5) # 901.78 386.16
901.78 386.53

Details of security on loans

Particulars As At 31 March 2023 As At 31 March 2022
Indian Rupee term loan #
Termn loan 346.18 732.34
Rate of interest 7.95% 8.20%

# one of the Subsidiary Company namely Travel Food Services (Delhi Terninal 3) Private Limited has a repayable in 3 quarterly equal instalinents of INR ‘)ﬁ,gﬁkk drom-

arch 2023 till September 2023 and balance loan amount as part of December 2023 installment. 14’%._ | =
o/
ured against / (’9\ Pl

. .o f I
Exelusive charge on the current assets of the Subsidiary Company namely Travel Food Services {(Delhi Jerminal 3) Private Limited f

Escrow of receivables, / | . |
e} Pledge of 30% sponsor shareholding of Delhi International Airport Lisfiled and Holding Company namey Travel Food Services Private Limited in the subsidiary company . {
namely Travel Food Services (Delhi Tenninal 3) Private Limitesd, \ ol /
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As At As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
9 Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 42) 819.38 468.61
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,690.75 2,452,05
3,510.13 2,920.66

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
As At 31 March 2023

Outstanding for fo lowing periods from posting date

Particulars

Unbilled Not Due Leszet::n 1 1-2 ~ears 2-3 years More than 3 Years Total
(i) MSME - - 652.85 91.28 36.26 38.99 819.38
(ii) Others 687.23 - 1,480.02 83.90 102.15 33745 2,690.75

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME 3 = E =
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - = = = = 2
Total 687.23 - 2,132.87 175.18 138.41 376.44 3,510.13

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
As At 31 March 2022

Outstanding for fo fowing periods from posting date

Particulars
Unbilled Not Due Lesiet::n 1 1-2 wears 2-3 years More than 3 Years Total
(i) MSME - 0.02 346.94 61.59 2471 3535 468.61

(ii) Others 347.30 13.79 1,480.29 108.06 145.12 357.49 2,452.05
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - . -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - E = 5
Total 347.30 13.81 1,827.23 169.65 169.83 392.84 2,920.66

10 Other current liabilities
To purties other than related partics

Interest accrued and due on borrow ings 2.58 535
Security deposits 227.46 113.30
Income received in advance 234.74 299.25
Deferred Income 249 1.97
Payable on purchase of Property, plant and equipment
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 42) 1845 29.64
- Others 500.48 898.84
Accrual for expenses 14,588.38 8,464.44
Accrued salaries and benefits 2,514.94 1,944.36
Statutory liabilities (Refer Note below) 1,422.67 772.82
Advance from customers 102.74 64,69

Due to related parties

Reimbursement of expenses (Refer note 39) 97.14 148.88
19,712.07 12,743.54
Statutory liabilities includes:
- Provident fund 177.26 122,97
- Profession tax 8.87 6.69
- Labour welfare fund 2.07 0.23
- Employee state insurance corporation 32.82 26.37
- Goods and services tax 716.21 264.28
- Tax deducted at source 374.57 283.87
- Tax collected at source 0.01 -
- Value added tax / sales tax 110.86 68.41
1,422.67 772.82

11 Short-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits:
-Gratuity (Refer note 40 (b)) 191.91 98.96
-Compensated absences (Refer note 40 (c)) 204.72 82,92

Other Provision:

Provision for taxation (net of advance tax) 1,309.73 309.45
Decommissioning liability 0.14 0.14
Provision for Disputed Rentals (Refer note below) 2,003.16 2,003.16

' 3,709.66 2,494.63
Note:

The Holding Company (Travel Food Services Private Limited) was paying rentals to the Airport Authority of India (AAI), in respect of the space occupied by its outlets at Goa
Airport, under dispute, under which provisions made during 2019-20 aggregate INR 2,165.18 lakhs, How=ver, out of the said amount, INR 229.64 lakhs was actually paud to
AAI during 2020-21 and hence has been adjusted leading to the amount of INR 1,935.54 lakhs. Further durng 2020-21 AAT had given credit notes wnr_l}y]ﬂk 121,29 lakhs omd
payments worth INR 53.67 lakhs were released by TFS, leading to amount under dispute at INR 2,003.16 akhs. Further during the current year arhj Emr. has. ;msscd the utdcr
in Company's favour. stating that no coneession & was payable by TFS in respect of the said premises. AAL has further filed an appeal before; e ek Hngp Court under
Section 34 of the Arbitration and ConcilliationsAct, 1996 challenging the award and this is currently pendir=; with High court for hearing which wigssehetiuled an 23 Jum: 2023
and further adiourned o 19 July 2023, \




A
"SP[E] TI'0T YN 5% ANEA AGAL YA JUNODIE JO $00q 34}
yd © pajoNpuoed JUMIIFEOE A1} *183A JUILIND 3Y) Sunn(

WI0I) $)ISSE ISIY) 13O UIPLIM SeY dnoas) 3Y) NS € SY -939[0SQO W03 PEY I0 ISN U J9FUO] OU JIIM IR} SJISSE UIBLIID PIYNUIP] PUE $)ISSB PIXY JO Eﬁ«z.-ﬁ.\

-Jea£ snoiraid sy ur papaodal us3q sey sporrad soud o3 Surureysad sye £6°0F YN JO HIEq UM U0NEIRIdIP 13U  "SIASSE YOus Jo AYI] [NJIsn ul 3Fueyd 0) SUTPEa] PIPNIAI U] ATy
SIIIUISISUOIUT / SIOLID S, *A1052)8 SJISSE 13430 JIPUN PIJISSE]D A[SNOIUOLII IIIM SJISSE UTELIAD JEY) PIAIISQO SEM 1 ‘1A sn01Adxd 3y3 Suranp Juswabeueur 31y Aq UINEIIIPUN II)SISL JISSE PIXTY 3Y) JO MIIADI € U0 PIseq

0508 00°t¥ 05°9€ TTT99°6 L6T0T €1'07C Lopl SO'6hS P16 T 76'879°9 €207 WIBJAl 1€ IE st due[eg
108 (Y4 19°8$ 0L'TE9'6 00°SLI 08°821 79'8T1 L6979 L6'818‘] SEPSL9 TTOT YOTEIAL 1€ I SB 9due|ed
¥90[q 19N

SHRLY 605 99°FCS Lb Lo PL 68'Sh 8°'L78 8981¢E €L96ET T9108°C EL'8TS8 €207 UEIAl [€ JE SE ddUE[Eg
95°0 S 95°0 (Ir'esT’n) acen (8'sTH) (09°cz1) (€8°€6€) (99°907°1) (61°08) + 4834 93 SunImp suonaRq / stesodsiq
$0°9S 9T's 08°0S 87°70T°T 8L°97 0€°801 ¥80S 8171 LEV09 18°66T°T IeaA 33 Sunanp suonippy
¥8°618 €9°LY 1TTLL 0T°ES6p1 T6°1E PESETT P16 3€'8LST 0690ty I1°60%L 720z T1ady | Ie se dueEeg
$8618 €9°Lb 1TTLL 01°€S6Y1 6'1€ PECEIT P 16€ 8¢°8LS 1 06'90F% 11°60¥'L TT0T YOIBIN [ ¢ e SE ddur[eq
SLTI s SLTl (8T°€S) - or11) (L8TT) 8E61 (8L1) (19°99) v stuaumsn(pe pouad 1ot1g
Lo - (zL'0) (€¥°297) (€T'8S) (€8'69) (€6°0) (ze61) wTeL) (88°SP) 1eak oY) Fuunp sesodsiq
SE9Z1 €re cTett S9THY‘1 8L'1 PLIST PO9P €1 0TELY 967678 Ieak oY) SULNp SUOLIPPY
9189 0S¥t $6'9€9 91 1€9°€1 LE'88 £890°1 61°69¢ aual €L°800' $9°669°9 120T [1dy | 18 se 9oue[eg

uoyespIOWE pue ‘uonenIdaq

$6'956 6896 90098 61'¥8S'vT 9¢°8bT 96'LYO'T 0p'S9p 8L'SP6'T PO'6IL'S $9°LST°ST €207 Y2IBN T€ ' SB dUE[RY
(891) - (89D (€9°9LT°D) (I€€D) 99°LIP) (6T°€CT) 61°9pY) (ST'SET'D) o' 1¥) x J8a£ 913 Sulmp suondjaq / siesodsiq
oL'YS 98°€T £6°0€ WSLTT vLYS L¥'10T $9'89 79981 [£%147 TTSE0°L 1834 2y) SulImp SUONIPPY
¥8°€06 €0°€EL 18°0€8 08°S8SvT 76'90T vI'v9T'T v0'07s SE€'607°T LY'STT'9 I EITFI 770z 1dy 1 Je se souefeg
¥8°€06 £0'¢L 18°0€8 08°S8S¥T 76'90T y1v9T'1 0°0TS SE60CT'T L8°STT'9 I 911 TTOT YIEIA [ ¢ Je Se ddue[eq
£1°9¢ - £1°9C (T1'97) - (69°51) L) 1706 (96°02) (96°LL) v siusunsn(pe pouad Joud
€L 3 (€L0) (6L°0LT) (€7'8¢) (TyoL) (€6°0) (1s61) (18°s2) (88°SH) Teak oy) Buunp sfesodsiq
€€t 1711 80 L6LEL'S €9°TLL STYEL L6'E6 LL'SYE £7°C18 16°SLTY 169k 9u) Sulnp sjudUNSNIPE / SUONIPPY
017998 15719 65108 PLYP161 A4 0091C°'1 £L'8TY 68'88L°1 1T°L0S°S 6€°111°01 120t [1dv [ Je se adue[eg
}d0[g S50ID)
§)3sse s)ydry syuawdmby saanjxiy A1aurgoewr syudwdAoadwy
JqiSueiul [e)O], 93STYOURI aemyyos s3asse a[qiue) [e)0], SIPIYIA s1anduro) PWPO pue amyuIny pue juelqd proyaseay
sjasse 3jqrdueju] s)asse Ajqisue ],

syasse I[qidueiu] pue Judwdinba pue jueld ‘Aaadorg a

(p2iD1s 2S1M42y30 SSajuUn ‘SyypT s23dny uoipu] :Aouz4n))
€707 YI1BIAl 1€ I€ SB S)UIIAIE)S [BIUBULY PIJEPIIOSUOD AY) 0] SI)ON

POMWIT 3JBALLJ SIIIAIIS POO] [PABI],



Travel Food Services Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

12 (i) Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP )

(a) For Capital-work-in progress, the ageing schedule is as given below :

As At 31 March 2023

Less than 1 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Projects in progress 641.30 15.56 - 4.82 661.68
Projects temporarily suspended - 6.67 - - 6.67
641.30 22.23 - 4.82 668.35
As At 31 March 2022
Less than 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than 3 Total
1 year years
Projects in progress 144.35 3.10 5.32
Projects temporarily suspended - 6.67 -
144.35 9.77 5.32 -




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As At As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
13 Non-current investments
(valued at cost unless stated otherwise )
Trade investments (unquoted)
Government and trust securities
National savings certificates 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00

Investment in Associate Company
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited

15,195,012 (previous year : 15,195,012) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each, fully paid-up 8,953.77 8,265.21

Add: Share in Profit of associate 3,809.54 688.56

Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f 05th August 2022)

6,231,262 (previous year 6,231,262) equity shares of face value RM. | each, fully paid up 963.84 1,098.57

Adad: Share in (loss) of associate (963.84) (134.73)
12,763.31 9,917.61
12,764.31 9,918.61

14 Long term loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
To parties other than related parties
Prepaid expenses 46.33 40.61

Capital advances

Considered good 1,121.74 300.12
Considered doubtful 441.48 122.12
Less : Provision for doubtful capital advances (441.48) (122.12)
1,121.74 300.12
Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) 1,120.60 1,291.43
Balance with Government authorities
- Goods and services Tax 40.82 124.61
- Value Added Tax - 0.01

Intercompany Deposit to related Parties (Refer note 33)
- Travel Retail Services Private Limited 875.00 -

To related parties
Loan given (Refer note 39) ~ 7,793.00 2,364.64
10,997.49 4,121.42

~ Holding Company has granted Loan of INR 5,428.35 lakhs (Previous Year : INR Nil) to Associate Compaay namely SSP Malaysia Sdn Bhd carrying interest @ 7% - 9.3% p.a. for
capital expenses, working capital management and other operational expenses.

~ One of the subsidiary namely Travel Food Services Chennai Services Private Limited had given loan of INE 2,364.64 lakhs (Previous Year : INR 2,364.64 Lakhs) to Travel Retail
Services Private Limited carrying interest @ 7% - 9.3% p.a. for capital expenses, working capital managemeat and other operational expenses.

15 Other non-current assets
Security deposits

Considered good 4,448.41 5,962.19
Considered doubtful - 107.60
Less : Provision for doubtful deposits - (107.60)
4,448.41 5,962.19
To related parties
- Security Deposits given (Refer note 39) 868.03 113.00
Bank deposits against guarantees (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date) (Refer note 19) * 254.53 86.32
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date) (Refer note 19) # 1,167.79 1,343.84
Accrued interest on bank deposits 0.25 0.21

Interest receivable from related parties (Refer note 39)

- Travel Retail Services Private Limited 604.05 410.12
- Provision for interest receivable (593.38) (410.12)
6,749.69 7,505.56

# Bank deposit amounting to INR 1,076.69 Lakhs (Preious year : INR 1,076.69) with Yes Bank Limited is forthe purpose of bank guarantee given to Airport Authority of India (AAT) in
accordance with congessionaire agreement and bank guarantee given to Deputy Commissioner of Customs towards EPCG licenses.
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(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16 Current investments
Investments in Mutual Funds - Unquoted
(Valued at loveer of cost and fair value)
Nil (Previous Year 313.57) units of Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund- Dircct Growth Fund of face value of INR B00 each, fully paid up
1,46,701.93 (Previous year 2,364.08) units of Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund- Direct Growth Fund of face value of INR 100 each, fully paid up
10.36 (Previous year Nil ) units of Aditya Birla Sunlife Overnight - Direct Growth Fund of face value of INR 100 each, fully paid up
1,84,037.51 (Previous Year 1,84,037.51) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Dir - Growth
9,59,598.87 (Previous Year Nil) Aditya Birla Sun Life CRISIL IBX AAA - Jun 2023 Index Fund
8,35,044.27 (Previous Year 8,35,044.27 ) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Corporate Bond Fund - Dir - Growth
12,82,888.28 (Previous Year 12,82,888.28) units of ICICI Prudential Equity - Arbitrage Fund - Dir - Dividend
53,83,532.31 (Previous Year 30,78,420.08) Units of ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund - Dir - Growh
9,793.30 (Previous Year 9,793.30) units of SBI Magnum Ultra Shert Duration Fund - Dir - Growth
14,86,656.00 (Previous Year 14,86,656.00) units of Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund - Dir - Dividend
27,660.69 (Previous Year 27,660.69) Units of Kotak Corporate Bond Fund - Dit - Growth
13,362.77 (Previous Year 17,440.80) Axis Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
32,707.38 (Previous Year 32,707.38) units of Axis Treasury Advantage Fund - Dir - Growth
9,683.04 (Previous Year 9,683.04) units of Axis Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Dir - Growth
1,758,215.67 (Previous Year Nil) units of Kotak Banking and PSU Debt Fund
17,459.12 (Previous Year Nil ) units of 'HDFC Money Market Fund
36,20,475.54 (Previous Year Nil) Units of '"HDFC Corporate Bond Fund
18,44,951.73 (Previous Year 18,44,951.73) units of Nippon India Arbitrage Fund - Dir - Growth
Nil (Previous Year 4,487.75) ‘Nippon India Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
5,555,246.92 (Previous Year Nil ) Units of 'Nippon India Banking & PSU Debt Fund
35,339.92 (Previous Year 35,339.92) units of Invesco India Corporate Bond Fund - Dir - Growth
11,263.69 (Previous Year 7,887.67) units of Invesco India Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
Nil (Previous Year 6,613.74) units of Tata Money Market Fund
74,17,753.99 (Previous Year 74,17,753.99) units of IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - Dir - Growth
10,392.40 (Previous Year 10,392.40) units of Tata Treasury Advantage Fund - Dir- Growth
Nil (Previous Year 39,264.01) units of SBI Magnum Low Duration Fund - Dir - Growth
13,354.60 (Previous Year 39,841.97) units of Axis Treasury Advantage Fund - Dir - Growth
Nil (Previous Year 5,074.57) units of HSBC Cash Fund - Dir - Growth
19,960.66 (Previous Year 19,960.66) units of 'HDFC Money Market Fund - Direct - Growth
Nil (Previous Year 4,567.11) units of HSBC Cash Fund - Direct - Growth
17,11,426.11 (Previous Year 17,11,426.11) units of ICICI Prudential Equity Arbitrage Fund - Direct Growsh
2,57,151.98 Previous Year 2,57,151.98) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Growth - Direct plan.
32,77,438.14 (Previous Year: 32,77,438.14) units of Kotak Savings Fund -Direct Plan- Growth
14,86,656.00 (Previous Year: 1,486,656.00 ) units of Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund - Dir - Growth
Nil (Previous Year 2,56,866) units of L&T Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct - Growth
4,999,346.94 (Previous year 30,78,420.08) units of ICIC] Prudential Comporate Bond Fund - Dir - Growth
894,628.39 (Previous year 8,94,628.39 ) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Corporate Bond Fund - Dir - Growtl-
25,931.90 (Previous year 25,931.90) units of Kotak Corporate Bond Fund - Dir - Growth
Nil (Previous year 3,834.80) units of Axis Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Dir - Growth
34,187.42 (Previous Year 34,187.42) units of Tnvesco India Corporate Bond Fund - Dir - Growth
11,830.00 (Previous year 11,830.00) units of Invesco India Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
32,06,928.88 (Previous Year : 32,06,928.88) units of Nippon [ndia Arbitrage Fund - Dir - Growth
12,83,742.73 (Previous year 12,83,742.73) units of Tata Arbitrage Fund - Dircct Growth
Nil (Previous Year 8,606.90) units of Tata Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth [6100934-TATAMF]
Nil (Previous Year 7,479.60) units of Nippon India Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
4,99,4181.50 (Previous year : Nit) units of HDFC Banking and PSU Debt Fund - Dir - Growth [10929347/93-HDFC]
10,017,999.93 (Previous year : Nil) units of Axis Corporate Debt Fund - Dir - Growth [91026185133-AXISMF]
Nil (Previous year 17,400.00) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund - Dir - Growth
13,129.71 (Previous year 5,525.21) units of Kotak Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
Nil (Previous year 8,462.23) units of Axis Liquid Fund - Dir - Growth
14,716.61 (Previous year 5,230.06) units of Tata Money Fund - Dir - Growth
Nil (Previous year 6,001.98) units of SBI Liquid Fund - Dir - Growth
65,977.59 (Previous year : Nil) units of Axis Money Market Fund - Direct Growth
10,210.74 (Previous year : Nil) units of HDFC Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
2,91,416.32 (Previous year : Nil) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Dir - Growth
22,644.80 (Previous year : Nil) units of Nippon India Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
Nil (Previous year 24,538.11) units of [CICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Dir- Growth
1,27,354.30 (Previous year 68,206.78) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Dir - Growth
Nil (Previous year 2,768.44) units of Kotak Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
6,244.22 (Previous year 6,751.12) units of Tata Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
8,526.65 (Previous year 5,988.65) units of Nippon India Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
6,72,743.61 (Previous year Nil) units of SBI Savings Fund - Dir - Growth
7,158.57 (Previous year Nil) units of HDFC Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth
24,696.39 (Previous year 6,538.19) units of Axis Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth

Aggregate book value of unquoted current investments
Agpregate markel value of unquoted current investments

As At
31 March 2023

As At
31 March 2022
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As At As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

17 Inventories
(Valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value)

Raw materials 908.86 524 49
Stock-in-trade 154.75 190 02
Inventory wiitten off - (2 84)

1,063.61 711 66

18 Trade receivables
From parties other than related partics

= Unsccured, considered good 11,026.39 4,678 19
- Doubtful 150.36 176 56
11,176,785 485475
Less: Doubtful {150.36) (176.56)
11,026.39 4,67¢ 19
From related parties
- Unsccured.considered good (Refer note no 36) 226.27 1974
226.27 1974
1 lg_l_'.ﬁ& 4,697.93

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
As At 31 March 2023

Ouststanding for following perinds from due date of payment
Particulars

Not Due Less than 6 | 6 '-l"."l('lS‘ 1-2 Yenrs| 2-3 Years| More than 3 Total
months 1 year years
i} Undhsputed Trade recevables — eonsidered powdd 6,252 42 4,995 23 423 - 000 078 11.252.66
|jwi] Vinedinpiited Trade Recotvablios — consulercd doubttil - 4313 531 1221 1529 7421 150,36
(iii) Disputed Trade Reccivables considered good - - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed Tiade Receivables consideied doubtful - - - - - - -
Total ,152.42 5,038.36 9,74 12.21 15.30 F5.00 11,403,03

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
AEALIT Margh 2022

Cantstanting for following pelinds from duc date of puyment

Particular
* Not Due | Less than 6 Gmonths~{, 5y o/ 123 vears| Morethan3 Total
months year years
[if] ll'nd'ﬂulu‘l Trade recehvables — ! good 3.976 83 699 84 0.94 000 » 2032 4.697.93
Ly Unlizpated Trzide Revenables — idosed doybefil - 4,56 8,06 AB63 | 1S 14 54 176.56
(i) Disputed Trade Reccivables considered good - - - - - - =
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful - - - - - = -
Total 3,0%083 .40 990 46 65 101.85 3486 4.874 49
19 Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 260.42 152.51
Cash in Transit 44.56 1001
Balances with banks :

- in current accounts 391548 2,18767

- 'Bank deposit with original maturity within ¢ -3 months 127.23 -
Other bank balances

- Bank Deposils secwied against bank guarantec with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 montas * (Refer note 30) 20.30 2030
- Bank Deposits with original maturity moic than 3 months but less than 12 months 9,214.96 8,028 04

Ij,ﬁ.w 030K 53

Details of depaosits

* Bank deposits duc to mature within 12 months of the repoiting date inchided under 'other bank balances 9,235.26 8,048 34
Bank deposits dist to mature after 12 months of the reporting datc included under 'other non- current assets' (Refar note 15) 142231 1430 16

10,657 57 YATR S0
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(Curvency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As At As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

20 Short term loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Other than related parties

Prepaid expenses 349.37 213.68
Loan Given * 600.00 -
Advance to employecs 38.36 47.76

Advance to suppliers

- Considered good 1,000.31 676.30
- Considered doubtful 531.54 553.27
Less : Provision for doubtful advance to suppliers (531.54) (553.27)
1,000.31 676.30
Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) 47.89 4425
Goods and services tax receivable 549 497
Value Added Tax 3.94 3.94

Recoverable from related parties (Refer note 39)

Reimbursement of expenses 13.39 0.55

Support service fees receivable 97.52 =

Other Receivables 49.38 230.34
2,205.65 1,221.79

*Holding Company has given loan amount of INR 600.00 lakhs (Previous year : INR Nil) to Meghalaya Hatels Private Limited ("MHPL"). MHPL shall create a step down subsidiary of
MHPL ("SPV"). The loan amount will get converted into equity holding in the SPV. If MHPL is unable to incorporate the SPV, the entire loan amount disbused will be repaid to Company
with accrued interest at 9.5% p.a.

21 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Security deposits 1,832.50 951.18

Other receivables

Considered good 30.00 1.02
Considered doubtful 5.00 160.37
Less : Provision for doubtful deposits (5.00) (160.37)
30.00 1.02
Due from members 455.49 185.63
Credit card collection on hand 21.30 13.45
Accrued interest on bank deposit 5.36 5.62
Other current assets 41.71 84,95
Unbilled revenue 89.78 65.75

Interest reccivable from related parties (Refer note 39)

Considered good 213.61 0.35

Considered doubtful 213.04 230.54

Less : Provision for doubtful interest receivable (213.04) (230.54)
213.61 0.35

2,689.73 1,307.94
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

22 Revenue from operations
Sale of products and services 1,03,290.82 37,152.87

Other operating revenues

Strategic tieup fees 1,110.63 756.13
Income from sub-concessioners 1,695.33 692.44
Management fees 259.67 132.28
Scrap sales 6.08 1.71
Others 8.68 14.43
Total other operating revenues 3,080.37 1,596.99
Total Income from operations 1,06,371.20 38,749.86

The Group is in the business of food and beverages and accordingly deals in numerous itemms such as groceries, eatables, consumables, beverages etc. Keeping in
view the nature of industry and vast number of items, it is impracticable for the business. the Group to give item wise breakup of different types of products.
Hence disclosure for breakup for revenue from sale of products is not presented.

Note :

One of the subsidiary company namely Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited has entered into a sale and supply agreement with Hindustan Coca Cola
Beverages Private Limited (*Coca-Cola’) dated 22 October 2014 for a period of ten yeas commencing from 02 December 2013. As per the agreement the
subsidiary company was entitled to a consideration of INR 2,000 lakhs for joint marketinz efforts to be mutually agreed between the parties. The commercial
terms of the agreement between both the parties have been finalised and subsequently the censideration was received from Coca-Cola. The management believes
that efforts required to fulfill the obligations under the agreement will be uniform and the ineome is to be recognised on a pro rata basis over the remaining period
of the agreement.

Accordingly, the subsidiary company namely Travel Food Setvices Chennai Private Limited is recognizing the income on straight line basis from 01 April 2016
to 01 December 2023. Till the previous year the subsidiary Company namely Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited has recognised an income of INR
1,303.57 lakhs. During the current year the subsidiary company namely Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited has recognised an income of INR 260.71
lakhs and the balance as at 31 March, 2023 is INR 174.99 lakhs (Previous Year : INR 435.71 lakhs) is disclosed as income received in advance, under other long-
term liabilities and other current liabilities.

23 Other income
Interest income on :

- Bank deposits 569.19 412.89
- Loans given to related parties 428.49 178.05
- Others 2.95 -

- Tax refund 30.66 0.57
Net gain on account of foreign exchange fluctuations 101.50 ° 2.61
Support service income 346.24 265.29
Net gain on sale of current investments 680.39 516.84
Provision for doubtful advances 55.71 1,210.98
Provision for doubtful debt no longer required written back 8.91 432.65
Liabilities no longer required written back 169.57 30.92
Provision against security deposits written back 81.23 -

Profit on sale of property plant and equipment 40.58 27.14
Sundry balances written back 43.26 10.56
Sale of duty scrips 50.90 -

Miscellaneous incomne 349.21 107.32

2,958.79 1.984.84




Travel Food Services Private Limited |
|

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

24 Cost of material consumed
(Food and beverages)

Opening stock of raw materials and packing matetial
Add : Purchases of raw materials and packing material
Less : Closing stock of raw materials and packing material

Cost of consumables

25 Purchase of stock-in-trade
Food and beverages

The Group is in the business of food and beverages and accordingly deals in numerous items sieh as groceries,
eatables, consumables, beverages efc. Keeping in view the nature of industry and vast number of items, it is
impracticable for the business/ the Group to give item wise breakup of different types of produats,

26 Change in inventories of stock-in-trade
Opening inventory of stock-in-trade
Closing inventory of stock-in-trade

27 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, bonus and other allowances
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 40 (a))
Gratuity (Refer note 40 (b))
Staff welfare expenses

28 Finance costs
Interest on :
- Term loan
- Bank overdrafts
- LLate payment of taxes
- Micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 42)
- Others

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
524.49 584.59
19,551.21 7,416.32
(908.86) (524.49)
19,166.84 7,476.42
192.52 97.96
19,359.36 7,574.38
1,690.14 661.39
1,690.14 661.39
190.02 80.86
(154.75) (190.02)
35.27 (109.16)
13,301.58 7,630.39
1,095.60 568.04
160.02 179.32
1,320.71 510.40
15,877.91 8,888.15
319.19
264.40
288.23

96.66

968.48
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29 Other expenses
Electricity charges
Rent (Refer note 41)
License and concession fees
Utilities charges
Repairs and maintenance
-Plant and machinery
-Building
-Others
Insurance
Crockeries
Rates and taxes
Legal and professional fees
Printing and stationery
Payment to auditors (Refer note 31)
Brokerage and commission
Advertisement and sales promotion
Telephone and communication expenses
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for doubtful advances
Advances written off
Inventory written off
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Provision for doubtful deposits
Provision for doubtful deposits no longer requied
Provision for doubtful interest receivable
Bad debt expense
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 46)
Travel and conveyance
Royalty / franchiseec expense
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation
Bank charges
Consumables
Management support fees
Freight charges
Balance written off
Stamp duty
Recruitment expenses
Loss on Assets Scrapped
Impairment of goodwill
Miscellaneous expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2023

2,338.65
658.89
29,954.49
515.74

66.02
2,230.85
36.16
115.48
21249
698.54
135.73
97.26
167.56
343.64
231.42
54.38
271.20
2.27

9.08
181.75
(181.75)

183.55
214.96
131.20
357.25
1,232.18
2.44
144.63
101.00
2.39

0.71
28.64
3.70

869.13

For the year ended
31 March 2022

1,231.14
497.87
12,364.24
195.71

47.55
1.62
1,202.12
33.82
61.51
318.94
552.49
61.33
97.83
159.02
89.08
166.42
3.16
247.21
2.04
2.84

75.67
410.12
115.77

5.48
125.94
506.24

3.96

33.29

70.29

8.67

5.52

1.36

1.50

1.37

69.60

41,411.62

573.79
_19,344.50
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30
@)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

i)

(vii)

vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

Contingent liabilities and commitments
Performance Corporate Guarantee :

(a) Holding Company has given performance corporate guarantee of INR Nil (Previous year : INR 3,750.00 lakhs) in favor of Mumbai International Airport Private Limited (MIAL),
as a shareholder of Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited (MALS).MALS has been awarded Concessionaire Agreement to design, fit-out, finance, develop, operate,
maintain and manage common use lounges at Chhatrapati Shivaji International Airport, Mumbai. This performance corporate guarantee has been issued as a continuing guarantee, for
the due and punctual perfonmance and observance by MALS of each and all of the payments, tenns,|ennditions, covenants, warranties, undertakings, indemnities, obligations and

agreements of whatever nature under and pursuant to said Concession Agreement, as and when due angl in accordance with the terms thereof, During the current year the same was
withdrawn due to ceasing of contract with MIAL.

(b) Holding Company has further given corporate guarantee of INR 3,174.78 lakhs (Previous year : INR Nil) in favor of Kotak Mahindra Bank, as a shareholder of BLR Lounge

Services Private Limited (BLR). BLR has availed term loan facility and working capita! facility from Katak Mahindra Bank pursuant to which the company has given performance
corporate guarantee for timely repayment and interest servicing of the same.

(c) Holding Company has further given corporate guarantee of INR 2,050.00 lakhs (Previous year : INR[Nil) in favor of YES Bank Ltd, as a sister subsidiary of Travel Retail Services

Private Limited (TRS). TRS has availed bank guarantee facility and working capital facility from YTS| Bank Ltd. pursuant to which the company has given performance corporate
guarantee for timely repayment and interest servicing of the same,

Interest expenses, license and concession fees claimed by Mumbai International Airport Private Limited {MIAL) which is not acknowledged as dues aggregating INR 344.91 Lakhs as
at 31 March 2023 (Previous year : INR 215.04 Lakhs).

Bank guarantees on behalf of the Holding Company in favor of Airport authorities and sales tax autharitief aggregated INR 1,959.58 Lakhs (Previous year INR 1,719,65 Lakhs).

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account by Group (net of advances) an not provided for as at 31 March 2023 is INR 3,011.89 Lakhs (Previous
year : INR 647.32 Lakhs).
Subsidiary namely Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited has executed Bank guarantee in favor of Airport Authorities of India towards security deposit as per the
concessionaire agreement as at 31 March 2023 INR 1,076.69 Lakhs (Previous year : INR 1,076.69 Lakhs} (Refer Note below).

Subsidiary namely Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited has executed Corporate Guarantee to Iotak Mahindra Bank Limited in respect of financial facilities granted to BLR
Lounge Services Private Limited as at 31 March 2023 INR 3,174.79 Lakhs (Previous year : INR 4.000.00{Lakhs)

Subsidiary namely Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited has executed Corporate Guarantee to Kejtak Mahindra Bank Limited in respect of financial facilities granted to
Travel Food Services Private Limited as at 31 March 2023 INR 2,500.00 Lakhs (Previous year : INR Nil)

Note :

The bank guarantee in favor of Airport Authority of [ndia is secured by the following:
1. Exclusive charge on all the moveable fixed assets of the subsidiary company.

2. Charge / assignment over receivables, insurance policies.

3. Exclusive charge on entire current assets of the subsidiary Company

4, Charge over operating cash flows and receivables of the subsdiary Company to be routed through bank.

5. Non disposal undertaking for 5,908,099 shares of Subsidiary Company namley Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited from Holding Company namely Travel Food Services
Private Limited.

6. Cash / Fixed deposit margin of 10% of guarantee amount.

Subsidiary Company namely Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited has executed bank guaranteeq in favor of Deputy Commissioner of Customs towards EPCG license as at
31 March 2023 TNR 1.73 Lakhs (previous year : INR 1,273.00 Lakhs).

Subsidiary Company namety Travel Food Services Kolkata Private Limited has executed bank Guaraiftees issued to Airports Authority of India and President of India through
Commissioner of Custoimns / VAT authorities INR 717.01 Lakhs (Previous year : INR 656.08 Lakhs).

Subsidiary Company namely Travel Food Setvices Chennai Private Limited has given Corporate Guaranfee of INR 3,174.79 Lakhs (Previous year INR 4,000.00 Lakhs) to Kotak
Mahindra Bank Limited in respect of financial facilities (Working Capital Demand Loan & Tenm Loan) gragted to fellow subsidiary namely BLR Lounge Services Private Limited.

Subsidiary namely Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited has further given Corporate Guarantee of [INR 2,500.00 Lakhs (Previous year : Nil) to Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
in respect of financial facilities (Working Capital Demand Loan & Tern Loan) granted to Holding company| namely Travel Food Services Private Limited

Holding Company had received notice for demand of INR 270.44 Lakhs (Previous year INR 270.44 Lakhs)|from Sales tax (Maharashtra) for F.Y.2012-13, on 9 May 2017 (order
dated 30 March 2017), Holding Company has filed stay against the same.

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt

a} Claims from vendors (refer note below)

- 78.54
b} Sales Tax/VAT demand existing on account of disallowance of input tax credit 4.10 4.10
) Income tax matters mainly on account of disallowances of royalty expenses by the Income-Tax tepartmeryl. The matter is pending in 5.94 5.94

appeal with the Commissioner of Income-Tax (Appeals)

Future ultimate outflow of resources embodying econormic benefits in respect of the above matters are uncertfiin as it depends on the final outcome of the matters involved.

The Subsidiary Company namely Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited has provided pommitment bank guarantees of INR 999,39 Iakhs (Previous year INR
1,004.91 lakhs) which are secured by pledge on its fixed deposits of INR 142.41 lakhs ( Previous year : INR|138.75 lakhs) as margin for issuance of such bank guaranices.
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

31

32

33

34

35

36

There has been a Supreme Court (SC) judgment dated 28th February 2019, relating to components of salary structure that need to be taken into account while computing the
contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act. 1952. There are interpretative aspects related to the Judgment, including the
effective date of application. The Group will continue to assess any further developments in this matter for the implications on financial statements, if any.

As per the license agreement executed between GMR Airports Limited (GAL) and one of the Joint ventare (GMR Hospitality Limited) dated 29th December' 2022, GMR Hospitality

Limited shall pay the interest free refundable security deposit amount of INR 150.00 lakhs and joint ven-ure is liable to pay concession fee @19% of revenue during the tenure of the
agreement

The Govemment of Goa ("GoG") and GMR Goa International Airport Limited ("GGIAL") have enteted into a Concession Agreement ("Concession agreement") on November 08,
2016 persuant to which GGIAL has been awarded an exclusive concession by the Governiment of Goa for development of greenfield airport at MOPA in the State of Goa ("Airport")
being developed by GGIAL on a designed , build , finance , operate, maintain and tranesfer basis through public private partnership mode.

GGIAL in order to grant a master license for the design, development, operation and management of Ton-Aero Facilities and Services at the Airport issued a Request For Proposal
(“RFP”) dated September 09, 2021 to the interested parties and after evaluation of the bids in response to RFP, GGIAL declared GAL as the successful bidder and signed a Master
Services Licence Agreement, dated 15th September' 2021 with GAL (“Master Services License Agreement”) for providing all the design, development, operation and management of
Non-Aero Facilities and Services at the Airport.

As we understand, the master concession agreement is subject clearance from Government of Goa whiclawas not given and the Government has directed GGIAL to cancel the existing
master concession agreement and {reshly bid the contract. However as per the tenns of agreement exceuled between the company and GAL on early termination of the contract, GAL is

liable to purchase capital expenditure incurred by the company at fair value detennined as per the terms cf the agreement.

The management does not expect any material impact of the pending litigations on its financial position az on 31 March 2023 (Previous year : Nil).

Payment to auditors (excluding taxes)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory audit 68.03 63.20
Others 18.86 26.86
Tax Audits 233 283
Certification and other services 349 313
Out of pocket expenses 455 1.80
97.26 97.83
Details of imported and indigenous raw materials which are consumed during the year
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
Value % of total Value % of total consumption
consumption
Imported - 0% - 0%
Indigenous 19,166.84 100% TATHhA42 100%
1%,166.84 100% TATH.A2 100%
Value of import calculated on CIF basis (on accrual basis)
The value of import calculated on CIF basis is not applicable for current and previous year
Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual hasis)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Royalty / franchise fees 73.31 35.71
Miscellaneous expenses 6.90 -
Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual hasis)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sale (food and beverages and products) 1,030.95 71.71
Interest Income 213.36 -
Reimbursement of Expenses 1243 -
Suppor service income 90.57 3.13
Unhedged foreign currency exposure
Particulars For the y2ar ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
Foreign currency ~ FC Equvalent INR Equivalent FC Equvalent INR Equivalent
Trade Payable GBP 0.58 58.60 0.54 54.59
Trade Payable usD 0.29 23.14 0.07 5.36
Trade Receivable usD 0.00 0.41 = -
Cash and Cash Equivalent usD 0.10 7.51 - 3
Cash and Cash Equivalent YEN 0.09 0.05 < ]
Cash and Cash Equivalent EUR 0.01 1.15 = =
Cash and Cash Equivalent 7 GBP 0.01 0.67 o, T oo s N
Cash and Cash Equivalent OTHERS 0.07 1.78 ] b
To related parties - Other receivable GBP 0.17 16.83 X - ‘.l‘-. b
To related partics - Support service fees receivable MYR 5.82 102.65 -l
To related parties - Reimbursement of expenses receivable MYR 0.71 13.92 |
Ta related parties - Loan given usD 66.02 5,429.30 -
Ta relnted patties - Accrued interest receivable USD 2.62 21361 =% N\ hluti
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{2) Income Tax Expense

Particulars

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year
(Excess) provision of tax for earlier years
Total current tax expense

Deferad tax

(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax assets
Tatal Deferred tax benefit / (expense)
Income tax (benefit) / expense

For the year ended
31 March 2023

7,195.37
(127.58)
7,067.79

(41.21)
(1,865.33)
5,202.46

For the year ended
31 March 2022

1,672.49

1.672.49

(188.20)
1,484.29

Particulars

Deferred tax asset:
Provision for bonus

Provision for gratuity

Others

Deferred tax assets

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Provision for expenses disallowed under Section 43B of Income Tax Act,1961 191.44 106.24
55.70 33.60
Disallowance w/s 35D of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.05 0.09
200.96 163.21
Provision for compensated absences 41.50 20.87
Provision for doubtful debts 205.16 36.35
Provision for doubtful advances 213.09 275.03
Items covered under section 40A of Income-tax Act, 1961 449.15 312.04
Excess of net block of property, plant and equipment for tax purpose over net block of property, plant and. 1413.17 135116
equipment as per books of accounts
Provision for disputed rental costs 151.26 151.25
Provision for doubtful security deposits 1.26 67.45
Brought forward and current year losses 317.58 715.70
173.53 217.67
Provision for doubtful interest receivable 53.62 58.03
3,467.46 3,508.68
Deferred tax assets recognised 3,178.44 1,313.17
Deferred tax assets comprises of:
Travel Food Services Private Limited 1,730.04 1,297.99
1,737.42 2,210.69

Subsidiaries

The Holding company has recognized deferred tax assets of INR 1,730.04 lakhs (Previou year : Nil) which is based on management estimation of reasonable certainity of future
taxable profits against which such deferred tax assets can be utilised. In the previous year due Lo absence of virtual certainity of future taxable profits of the Holding company had not

recognised deferred tax asset of INR 1,989.06 lakhs.

In one of the subsidiary company namely TFS (R&R) Works Private Limited (f.k.a Travel Food Delhi Services Private Limited) deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
they are considered to be virtually certain of realization. Accordingly, the deferred tax assets of INR 289.02 is not recognized due to virtual uncertainity of realization,

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted Earning Per Share
Net Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders

Calculation of the weighted average number of shares
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year

Addl: shares issued during the year

Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year
Weigh of shares c ding during the year

' tab

W d average
Nominal value of equity shares
Basic and diluted earning per share (fice valuc of INR 10 per share)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

24,519.10

38,72,926

38,72,926
38,72,926

For the year ended
31 March 2022

1,240.62

38,72,926

38,72,926
38,72,926
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39 Related party disclosures

A Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Parties where control exists :
Holding Company:
SNVK Hospitality and Management Private Limited

Investors having substantial voting power of reporting enterprise:
SSP Asia Pacific Holdings Limited

Associate companies
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f 05th August 2022)

Jaoint Venture
GMR Hospitality Limited (w.e.f 25 July 2022)

Fellow subsidiaries
“Travel Food Works Private Limited
‘Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Key management personnel :
Varun Kapur - Director
Katan Kapur - Director

Other related parties where transactions have taken place during the year :

Entities in which Key Management Personnel are having significant influence/ control
Deluxe Caterers Private Limited

Global Kitchen (Kolkata) LLP

Global Kitchens Private Limited

Giobal Kitchen (KG) LLP

Global Kitchen F&B LLP

Global Kitchens Bengaluru LLP

Girand Cuisines Banquets Private Limited

The Trish House Food and Beverages Private Limited

Kanco Banquets and Catering Private Limited
Everest Caterers LLP

Contemporary Kitchens Private Limited

Other Related Parties
SSP Financing UK Limited
Select Service Partner UK Limited

B Transactions with related parties during the year

Other income

Support service income

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited

Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f 05th August 2022)

Interest income
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f 05th August 2022)

Income from sub-concessioners
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Interest on loan given
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Inter Corporate Deposit
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Expenses
Everest Caterers LLP - Rent

Purchase of goods

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited
Global Kitchens Bengaluru LLP

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Sales of goods and services

Muinhai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Kapea Banquets and Catering Private Limited
Giphal Kitchen (Kolkata) LLP

GMR Hospitality Limited {w.e.f25 July 2022) *

For the year ended
31 March 2023

331.00
90.57

213.05

7.65

215.47

875.00

188.58

For the year ended
31 March 2022

262,16
3.13

4.11

178.05

166.55

* Includes Group share of 30 %
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39 Related party disclosures (Continued)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
(ilobal Kitchens F&B LLP - 232
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 14.70 -
GMR Hospitality Limited (w.e.f 25 July 2022) * 0.12 .
Investment in Associate
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f 05th August 2022) - 1,098.57
Royalty
The Trish House Food And Beverages Private Limited = 043
Unsecured loan given
Travel Retail Services Private Limited - 349.64
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f 05th August 2022) 5,347.80 -
Sundry balances written off
Global Kitchens Private Limited 17.50 -
Global Kitchens (KG) LLP 298 -
Provision for doubtful interest receivable
Global Kitchens Private Limited 17.50 410.12
Reimbursement of expenses receivable
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 4.02 173.88
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f. 05 August 2021) 1243 -
Trivel Food Works Private Limited 59.00 -
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited - 7.14
Deluxe Caterers Private Limited - 0.03
Global Kitchens F&B LLP - 433
The Irish House Food and Beverages Private Limited - 0.79
SNVK Hospitality & Management Pvt Ltd - 0.59
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited - 0.52
Gitand Cuisines Banquets Private Limited 0.02 -
GMR Hospitality Limited (w.e.f25 July 2022) * 229.82 .
Contemporary Kitchens Private Limited 0.55 -
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 146.22
Reimb t of exp (paid) / payable
Deluxe Caterers Private Limited 19.27 0.81
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 10.45 3.92
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited 20.61 -
Global Kitchen (Kolkata) LLP 3.00 -
SSP Financing UK Limited - 0.64
Varun Kapur 15.46 1.79
The Irish House Food and Beverages Private Limited 0.29 0.02
Travel Retail Services Private Limited - 37.28
Guarantees given on behalf of companies {Refer Note 30)
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 2,050.00 e
KMP's other than those mentioned abg¥e do not draw any remuneration/fees from the Company. S S
* Includes Group share of 30 % Jd I S

~\Y
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39 Related party disclosures (Continued)
C Closing Balance with related partics

Interest receivable from related parties

As At
31 March 2023

As At
31 March 2022

Global Kitchens Private Limited - 17.50
TES Gate Onboard Sales and Services Private Limited = 0.35
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f. 05 August 2021) 213.61 .
Trave| Retail Services Private Limited 817.09 623.16
Security Deposits given

Evetest Caterers LLP 113.00 113.00
Unsecured Loan given 0.02
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 2,364.64 2,364.64
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f. 05 August 2021} 5,428.36 -
Intercompany deposit given

Travel Retail Services Private Limited 875.00

Provision for doubtful interest receivable

Travel Retail Services Private Limited 806.42 623.16
Global Kitchens Private Limited - 17.50
Support Service Fee Receivable

Sclect Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f. 05 August 2021) 102.65 313
Trade Receivables

Global Kitchens F&B LLP 232 2.32
Global Kitchen (Kolkata) LLP - 11.91
GMR Hospitality Limited (w.e.f 25 July 2022) * 1.57

Travel Retail Services Private Limited 223.95

Trade Payable

Everest Caterers LLP - 5.40
SSP Financing UK Limited . 60.85
Reimbursement of expenses receivable

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 0.13 7.14
SSP Financing UK Limited 18.26 18.26
GMR Hospitality Limited (w.e.f 25 July 2022) * 2548

Travel Food Works Private Limited 0.12 -
Deluxe Caterers Private Limited 0.05 12.58
Global Kitchen (Kolkata) LLP 040 -
The Irish House Food and Beverages Private Limited 8.01 177
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited 0.73 417
Everest Caterers LLP 0.05 -
SMVK Hospitality & Management Pvt Ltd 0.59 0.62
Global Kitchen (KG) LLP - 2.98
Travel Retail Services Private Limited - 168.84
~elect Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.c.f. 05 August 2021) 12.43 0.80
TFS Gate onboard Sales and Services Private Limited 6.59
Reimbursement of expenses payable

SSP Asia Pacific Holdings Limited 0.58 54.59
Select Service Partner UK Limited 23.36 23.36
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 3141 35.04
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 3599 -
Ciranel Cuisines Banquets Private Limited - 1.61
S8’ Asia Pacific Holdings Limited - 0.58
Everest Caterers LLP - 23.84
Global Kitchens Bengaluru LLP - 10.25
Guarantees given on behalf of associate

Travel Retail Services Private Limited 2,050.00 —= -
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Privdle Limited - 375000

=

nelures G -hnreof]l)%“/
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40 Employec benefit disclosures in accordance with Accounting Standard 15

(a) Defined contribution plans
Amount of INR 1,059.79 lakhs (Previous year : INR 561.69 Lakhs) towards contribution to grovident fund and employees” state insurance corporation is recognized as an
expense and included in employee benefit expense.
(b) The company’s gratuity benefit is unfunded and it is defined benefit plan.
The Holding Company, subsidiaries and joint venture incorporated in India have a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service gets a gratuity on death or resignation or retirement at 15 days salary (last drawn sala-y) for each completed year of service with maximum ceiling as per Company
policies.
Amount recognized in balance sheet For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of obligations 739.48 644.26
(Liability) recognized in balance sheet (739.48) (644.26)
Movement in present values of defined benefit obligations For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation 644.26 525,57
Current service cost 231.95 181.92
Interest cost 36.81 27.98
Transfer in Liability 10.99 -
Transfer Qut (Liability) 9.39) E
Actuarial losses (108.74) (31.93)
Benefits paid (66.39) (59.27)
Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 23 73948 644.26
Schedule I11 of the Companies Act, 2013 As At As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current liability 191.91 98.96
Non-current liability 54157 545.30
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 231.95 181.92
Interest on obligation 36.81 2798
Adjustment to opening balance - 1.35
Net actuarial loss tecognized in the year (108.74) (31.94)
Total included in ‘employee benefits’ 160.02 179.32
Principal actuarial assumptions As At As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Mortality IALM (2012-14) ULT  JALM (2012-14) ULT
Normal retirement age 60 years 60 years
Discount rate as at 31 March 2023 7.00% - 7.10% 5.40% - 5.90%
Attrition Rate
RL1-4 14% - 30% 14% - 30%
RL 5 and below 30% - 60% 30% - 60%
Expected average remaining service 1.00-1.45 3.00-307
Expected salary increase rate 8.00% 8.00%
The estimate of future salary increase, considered in the actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and
demand in the employment narket. The obligations are measured at the present value of estimat=d future cash flows by using a discount rate that is determined with reference
to the market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Government Bonds, which is consistent with the estimated terms of the obligation.
Five year experience history 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Defined benefit obligation 540.28 395.81
(Surplus) / deficit in the plan 540.28 395.81
Experience (gain) adjustinent on plan liabilities (116.90) (100.17)
(<) Compensated absences

Provision for accumulated compensated absences is made at current employee compensation rate- for the eligible un-availed leave balance standing to the credit of the
employees at the year end. The provision for compensated absences as at the year ended 31 Marzh 2023 is INR.204.72 lakhs (Previous year : INR 8292 lakhs);
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41

42

43

44

45

Operating lease

Operating leases as lessee:

The Group has taken office premises under non cancellable operating lease. The Group has also entered into cancellable arrangements for taking on leave and license basis certain
office premises, warehouses, guest house premises and other premises. The Group has given refundatde security deposits in accordance with the agreed terms. Lease payments are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss INR 628.69 lakhs (Previous year : INR 421.74 lakhs).

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable aperating leases are as follows:

Particulars As At As At

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Nal later than one year 444.19 516.85
Later than one year but not later than five years 668.83 723.49
Later than one yeat but not later than five years 390,07 17337

Due to micro and small enterprises

Under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into farce from 2 October 2006, information has been determined to the extent such
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group:

Particulars As At As At

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year
- Principal 413.65 344,84
- Interest 424.19 153.41

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) - -

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each zcounting year 982.56 1,642.08
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paic but beyond the appointed day 305.81 65.70
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 424.19 153.41

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above - -
are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006

Transfer pricing

The Group’s management has developed a system of maintenance of information and documents as reqaired by the transfer pricing legislation under Section 92 to 92F of the Income
Tax Act, 1961. The Group’s management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at armis length so the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial
statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Segment reporting
a) Secondary segment reporting (by geographical segments)
As the Group business activity falls within a single business segment viz. ‘Managing and developing f0d and beverage outlets and lounges’ and the sales substantially being in the

domestic market, the financial statement are reflective of the information required by Accounting Standsrd 17 “Segment Reporting”, notified under Companies (Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2021

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 131,20 5.48
b)  Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 131.20 5.48
Tn cash Yet to be paid in Total
cash

) Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2023:
i) Construction / acquisition of any asset = x -

ity On purposes other than (i) above 2.35 - 2.35
In cash Yet to be paid in Total
cash
d) Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2022:
i) Construction / acquisition of any asset = - -
i)  On purposes other than (i) above 5.48 - 5.48
¢) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
Amount
Opening balance as at 1 April 2022 required to be Amcunt spent during the year Closing balance as at 31 March 2023
spent during the
year —
gml In Separate CSR Unspent Account From Cempany's | From Separate CSR 3 IllSLpg_raIe CSR:
TR, Bank account Unspent Account Onspent Aceabnt
131.20 2.35 - - l‘zsrsi;/
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46 The share of Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associates in consolidated net assets =nd consolidated profit or loss as follows :

47

Net Assets i.e Total assets minus Total Share in Profit or Loss
Liabilities
Name of the Compan o
pany As_a % As a % Consolidated
Consolidated net Amount Amount
Profit or loss
assets
Parent Company
Travel Food Services Private Limited 20.65% 15,168.28 2201% 5,396.05
Subsidiaries
Indian
TFS (R&R) Works Private Limited (f.k.a.Travel Food Services (Delhi) Private Limited) -0.37% (272.11)| -1.21% (296.65)
Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited 31.27% 22,973.13 24,67% 6,048.87
Travel Food Services Kolkata Private Limited 24.23% 17,796.64 19.49% 4,779.81
BLR Lounge Services Private Limited 11.80% 8,669.34 21.88% 5,363.57
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 3.73% 2,742.27 8.71% 2,135.38
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited (w.e.f 30th June 2022) -0.30% (223.96) -0.95% (233.96)
Foreign
Travel Food Services Global Private Limited 2.03% 1,487.53 -0.04% 8.71)
Gourmet Food LLC 0.53% 392,99 -0.01% (2.25)
Associate
Indian
Mumnbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 15.23% 11,187.56 15.54% 3,809.54
Foreign
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f 05th August 2022) -1.50% (1,098.57)| -3.93% (963.84)
Joint Venture (as per proportionate consolidation)
Indian
GMR Hospitality Limited (w.e.f 25th July 2022) 0.30% 217.29 -0.10% (25.71)
Intercompany elimination -9.21% (6,763.96)| -2.57% (630.00)
Total 98.39% 72,276.42 103.48% 25,372.12
Add / (Less): Minority interest 1.61% 1,181.22 -3.48% (853.01)
Total 100.00% 73,457.63 100.00% 24,519.10

Holding Company’s Interest in the Joint Ventures

Holding Company (Travel Food Services Private Limited) has an investment of 30% in Joint Venture narzely GMR Hospitality Limited. The results and assets and liabilities of joint
ventures are incorporated in these Consolidated Financial Statements using the proportionate mmethod of &ccounting,

Particulars

a) Liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

b} Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress
Non current assets
Current assets

c) Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

d) Expenditure
Cost of materials consumed
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Decrease in inventories of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expenses
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses

As At
31 March 2023
353.41
217.29
1.48
134.64

35341
99.96
2.09
42,80
55.97
152.59

139.14
135.26
3.88

173.49
40,07
0.82
(0.57)
52,60
001

s |
Jmanl

As At
31 March 2022

flen s
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48 Business Combination }
During the year on 25 July 2022, the Holding Comnpany namely Travel Food Services Private Limited ha: aquired 24,30.000 number of sharcs (cquivalent to 30% of Equity Share
Capital) in GMR Hospitality Limited which is newly incorprated company (incorporated on 25 July 2027).

49 The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

50 Associate Company: Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited an Associate Company has enkred into agreements with Mumbai International Airport Limited (‘MIAL’). In
exercise of the agreement right, MIAL has, on 22 September 2022, served a notice on the Associate Campany to terminate the agreements on expiry of 90 days from the date of the
notice, i.e., effective 21 December 2022. The Associate Company continues to operate lounge servces at Mumbai International Airport till date of approval of these financial
statements. Further, MIAL has granted extension to operate the loyalty lounge at Mumbai Internatimnal Airport till 31 December 2023, Without any further communication on
extension, there is uncertainty on the continuation of operating lounge services at Mumbai International Airport. These events or conditions indicate that 2 material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Associate Company to continue as a going concemn aad therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge liabilities in the
normal course of the business. However, as at the year end, the Associate Company has sufficient zash balance and short-term investments to meet its financial obligations in
foreseeable future. Further, management of Associate Company is in active discussions with MIAL O further extend / re-negotiate the existing arrangements and also evaluating
alternate business opportunities. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Associate Company have a masonable expectation that the Associate Company will be able to operate as a
going concern in the near future and has prepared financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 on a going concern basis.

51 Scheme of Amalgamation : The Composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation amongst Tra el Food Services Private Limited (“Transferee Company™) with BLR Lounge
Services Private Limited (First Transferor Company), Travel Food Services Chennai Private Limited Second Transferor Company), Travel Food Services Kolkata Private Limited
(Third Transferor Company) (collectively referred to as “Transferor Companies ) and their Respectivs Shareholders (“*Scheme”) has been approved by the respective Boards of all
Companies and has been filed before the National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") Mumbai Bench or approval. The scheme is awaiting clearance from NCLT as on the date of
approval of the consolidated financial statements.

52 Other statutory information
(i) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pendingagainst the Company for holding any Benami property.
(ii) The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off,
(iii) The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intargible assets or both during the current or previous year.
(iv) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial yesr
(v) The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate company and jointly controlled entitr incorporated in India have not advanced or loaned or invested funds
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Interinediary shall:
(a) directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoeve: by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiary oo ies. associate company and jointly controlled entity company (Liltimate Bencfic aries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) No funds have been received by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate commany and jointly controlled entity incorporated in India from any other
persons or entities, including forcign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that the Holcing Company or any of such subsidiary companies, associatc company
and jointly controlled entity shall:

(a) directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons ot entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that Ias been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions Jf the Income Tax Act, 1961

(viii) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any hank or financial institution or govemmerr or any government authority.,

(ix) The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(x) The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on curreat or previous financial year subject to note 51.

As per our report of even date attached.

ForBS Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
m'!m.'mrrs Travel Food Services Private Limited
ragor No: l_[me#W-IOOOM CIN: IJSSZL_\QM H2007PTC176045
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Shahbir Readymadewala Karan Kapur Varun Kapur

Partner Director Director
Membership No: (00060 DIN: 01711148 DIN: 00113399
Mumbai

Date : 17 July 2023 Date : 17 July 2023




